
AGENDA 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

CITY OF LAKEWOOD JULY 1, 2010 
 

 
Meeting called to order at 6:30 p.m. by Mayor Aaron Prince. 
 
Opening prayer and pledge of allegiance to flag led by Commissioner James Allen. 
 
Roll call. 
 
 
Approval of minutes of June 3, 2010 meeting 
  
City Manager’s report 
 
 

  
Citizens Comments 
 
 
Old Business: 

 
 

 
 

1. Ordinance 396 - 2010-2011 Lakewood Budget 
2. Ordinance 397 – Updated Cross Connection Plan 
 

 
  

 


	Citizens Comments




FISCAL YEAR JULYY 1, 2010 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2011


SECTION 1. A budget of the Available Funds and Appropriations listed
in Section 2 and Section 3 below be adopted for the Fiscal Year ar July 1, 2010 through
June 30,2011


SECTION 2. The Available Funds for said budget are as follows:


General Fund Balance Revenue Total
Local Taxes 121,708         135,000$        145,000$      
Licenses and Permits 22,455           22,500            5,000            
Intergovernmental Revenue 246,209         215,300          227,000        
Charges For Services 10,000            10,000          
Fines and Forfeitures 306,366         345,000          275,000        
Miscellaneous Revenue 28,816           5,000              10,500          
Fund Balance 280,239$       270,060          163,967        


Total General Fund 1,005,793      1,002,860       836,467        


State Street Aid Fund
Intergovernmental Revenue 61,726           62,019            65,000          
Fund Balance  (18,700)         


Total State Street Aid Fund (15,199)          (18,700)           46,300          


Sanitation Fund
Sanitation Revenues 197,051         202,000          205,000        
Fund Balance  185,786        


Total Sanitation Fund 197,051         202,000          390,786        


Waterworks Fund
Water Revenues 268,507         258,777          260,000        
Installation and tap fees 29,111           33,427            34,000          


Total Waterworks Fund 297,618         292,204          294,000        


Drug Fund
Drug Revenue 7,031             5,000              5,000            
Fund Balance 18,200          


Total Drug Fund 7,031             5,000              23,200          


Total All Funds 1,492,294      1,483,364       1,590,753     


           
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LAKEWOOD, TENNESSEE, BUDGET FOR THE


BE ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF LAKEWOOD, TENNESSEE, AS FOLLOWS:


Page 1







SECTION 3. Appropriations for said budget are as follows:


General Fund
General Government 425,166$        
Public Safety 330,547          


Total General Fund 755,713$      


State Street Aid Fund
Streets 59,966            


Total State Street Fund 59,966          


Sanitation Fund
Sanitation Expenses 178,200          


Total Sanitation Fund 178,200        


Waterworks Fund
Water Expenses 285,040          
Capital Improvement Items 150,000          


Total Waterworks Fund 435,040        


Drug Fund 1,000              
Drug Expenses 1,000            


Total Drug Fund


TOTAL ALL FUNDS 1,429,919$   


SECTION 4. No appropriations listed above may be exceeded without
appropriated ordinance action to amend budget.


SECTION 5. A detail line item financial plan shall be prepared in support of
the budget.


SECTION 6. All unencumbered balances of appropriations remaining at the 
end of the fiscal year shall lapse and revert to the respective fund balance.


SECTION 7. The appropriations of this budget shall become the appropriations for 
the next fiscal year until the budget for the next year has been adopted.







CITY OF LAKEWOOD, TENNESSEE
 
GENERAL FUND 2008/2009 2009/2010 2010/2011


Actual Estimated Proposed


AVAILABLE FUNDS


TAXES
Local Sales Tax 67,098$         72,701$          75,000$        
Metro Liquor Tax 36,137           69,141            70,000          
Total Taxes 103,235         141,842          145,000        


LICENSES AND PERMITS
Building Permits 12,099           3,878              5,000            
Business Licenses 4,977             625                 -                
Total Licenses and Permits 17,076           4,503              5,000            


INTERGOVERNMENTAL
TVA Gross Receipts Tax 22,449           16,095            17,000          
State Sales Tax 221,035         139,984          165,000        
State Sales Tax Tele  178                  
State Income Tax 5,236             5,245              5,000            
State Beer Tax 1,221             27,059            30,000          
State Street and Transit Funds 5,036             4,188              5,000            
State Grants 6,316             2,412              5,000            
Total Intergovernmental 261,293         195,161          227,000        


CHARGES FOR SERVICES
Sewer Fees from Metro 10,088           6,878              10,000          
Total Charges for Services 10,088           6,878              10,000          


FINES AND FORFEITURES
City Court Fines 153,622         184,202          260,000        
Traffic Training 12,069           12,899            15,000          
Impound charges
Total Fines and Forfeitures 165,691         197,101          275,000        


 
MISCELLANEOUS


Interest 728                 1,500            
Sales of Assets 934                 1,500            
Insurance proceeds 29,149           25,000            
Other 9,335             1,840              7,500            
Total Miscellaneous 38,484           28,502            10,500          


TOTAL REVENUES 595,867         573,987          672,500        


BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 280,239         270,060          163,967        


Page 2







TOTAL AVAILABLE FUNDS 876,106$      844,047$       836,467$      


CITY OF LAKEWOOD, TENNESSEE
 
GENERAL FUND


2008/2009 2009/2010 2010/2011
Actual Estimated Proposed


EXPENDITURES
City Council   


Aaron Prince 5,700             5,700              5,700$          
April Consulo 4,800             4,800              4,800            
Cathy McKellar 4,800             4,800              4,800            
James Allen 4,800             4,800              4,800            
John McClung 4,800             4,800              4,800            


City Court Expenses
Wages 30,000           30,000            25,500          
Health ins


Judge 3,250             3,500              3,500            
City Recorder


Wages
Alicia Prince 39,000           39,000            38,046          
Health Ins
oper sup  


City Maintenance 
Wages
Election  
Building 12,270           12,704            10,000          
Supplies 2,524             
Water
Electric 3,004             
Heating Gas


City Hall Grounds 2,983              9,000            
Planning and Zoning


Codes 31,500           32,598            32,000           
State Planning Office  
Stormwater project  


City Manager  
Wages 56,250           55,000            57,220          


Election
City Attorney 10,455           8,430              8,500            
Other Legal Fees -                  
Accounting in House 12,000           12,000            12,000          
Auditing Independent 5,000             5,000              5,000            
Merit raises  
Office expenses


Page 3







Sewer account 15,795           4,178              5,000            
Parks 6,004             -                  26,500          
Capital outlay
Supplies
Other


CITY OF LAKEWOOD, TENNESSEE
 
General Fund 2008/2009 2009/2010 2010/2011


Actual Estimated Proposed


Donations  
Insurance  
Debt Service  63,347           64,000            65,000          


Benefits  
OASDI and Medicare 25,000           22,345            25,000          
Miscellaneous 2,724             


Medical insurance 61,500           57,866            60,000          
State Unemployment tax 2,000             2,000              2,000            
Retirement 15,500           15,582            16,000          


General Fund Totals 422,023$      392,086$       425,166$      


POLICE
Wages 187,231$       191,417$        210,047        
Benefits  2,108               


 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  


Utilities(nextel,util,comcast,water) 8,810             9,175              10,000          
Repairs and maintenance 7,787             18,060            10,000          
Gas Vehicle Expenses 17,894           16,197            25,000          
Office  9,387              10,000          
Operational supplies 23,138           33,150            34,000          
Insurance 42,212           22,995            20,000          
Capital Outlay 34,968            7,500            
Pal Expenses  -                   
Towing 500                 1,000            
Training 80                  120                 2,000            
Miscellaneous 586                150                 1,000            
    


Page 4







Total Police 322,706$      303,259$       330,547$      


CITY OF LAKEWOOD, TENNESSEE
 


SANITATION 
2008/2009 2009/2010 2010/2011


Actual Estimated Proposes


REVENUES
Sanitation Revenues 202,419$       189,876$        205,000$      


Transfer from General


Total Revenue 202,419         189,876          205,000        


Beginning Fund Balance 134,154         158,287          185,786        


Total Available 336,573         348,163          390,786        


Expenditures
Debt service  
Wages  
Other  
Benefits   
Utilities 2,935             3,174              3,200            
Office Supplies 3,169             3,745              4,000            
Insurance 7,046             5,487              6,000            
Contract Services 162,207         162,205          165,000        


Total Expenditures 175,357         174,611          178,200        


Ending Fund Balance 161,216$      173,552$       212,586$      


Page 5







CITY OF LAKEWOOD, TENNESSEE
STREET AID DEPARTMENT
  


2008/2009 2009/2010 2010/2011
Actual Estimated Proposed


REVENUE
Intergovernmental 61,465$         62,019$          65,000$        
Misc 261                
Total Revenue 61,726           62,019            65,000          


EXPENDITURE
Wages 40,554           40,162            34,216          


  
  
  


Employee benefits 4,036             3,987              4,000            
Maintenance and Repairs 11,629           2,752              3,000            
Insurance 11,002           10,012            10,000          
Street Lights 8,081             8,000              8,000            
Supplies 2,262             607                 750               
Capital Outlay 61,444            
Total Expenditures 139,008         65,520            59,966          
Excess expenditures  


Fund Balance Beginning 62,083           (15,199)           (18,700)         


Fund Balance Ending (15,199)$       (18,700)$        (13,666)$       


Page 6







CITY OF LAKEWOOD, TENNESSEE
WATERWORKS BUDGET
 


2008/2009 2009/2010 2010/2011
Actual Estimated Proposed


Revenues
Meter Sales 274,094$       258,777$        260,000$      
Installation and tap fees 28,926           16,702            17,000          
Other Revenue 16,725            17,000          


Total Operating Revenues 303,020         292,204          294,000        


Operating Expenses
Wages 75,688           76,901            92,540          
Employee benefits 7,940             7,690              8,000            
Material and supplies 9,393             4,270              4,000            
Repairs and Maintenance 27,947           11,640            15,000          
Water Purchase 112,855         101,900          110,000        
Office expense 10,090           9,969              10,000          
Insurance 10,602           9,143              10,000          
Utilities 3,990             3,750              4,000            
Education
Professional services 11,835           7,500              7,500            
Depreciation 4,212             6,000              8,500            
Retirement Cost
Health Insurance
Vehicle maintenance  
Gasoline 9,535              10,000          
Operations 4,500              5,000            
State Fines  
Bad Debts 225                 500               


274,552         253,023          285,040        


Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses)  
Interest Income   


Total NoNon oper revenue   


Net Income (Loss) 28,468           40,181            7,960            


Page 7







Retained Earnings Beginning 287,842         316,310          330,491        
Capital Improvements Projects  


Water Projects 25,000            150,000        
Truck -                


Retained Earnings Ending 316,310$      330,491$       189,451$      
 


 
Page 8


CITY OF LAKEWOOD, TENNESSEE
Drug Fund
  


2008/2009 2009/2010 2010/2011
Actual Estimated Proposed


REVENUE
Intergovernmental    
Drug Fines 15,045           7,939              5,000            
Total Revenue 15,045           7,939              5,000            


EXPENDITURE
Drug Fund Supplies 2,939             800                 1,000            
Capital Out 2,000              
Wages  3,500               


  
Total Expenditures 4,939             4,300              1,000            
Excess expenditures 10,106            


Fund Balance Beginning 4,455             14,561            18,200          


Fund Balance Ending 14,561$        18,200$         22,200$        





		budget # 2 






City Manager’s Report 
 


The City of Lakewood has had its “kickoff” meeting with FEMA concerning public 
property infrastructure flood damage.  FEMA is currently writing several claims for 
Lakewood including reimbursement for debris cleanup and chipping.  Brad Hutchinson 
went with a small group Monday for site visits to several streets and culverts that 
sustained damage.   We will be filing several claims.  FEMA pays 75% and the State 
pays 12.5% with Lakewood picking up 12.5%.  
 
It has been rumored that Lakewood is using FEMA street repair money to buy the 62 
acres of land off Ray Avenue.  That is completely false.  FEMA requires receipts for all 
work done or hours worked before they even consider any reimbursement for flood 
damage.  We have applied for 75% of the money through their land buyout program.  It is 
a completely different funding source made available when the city adopted the Flood 
Insurance Ordinance.  The City may or may not be granted those funds.          
 
I have talked with Shain Dennison from Metro Greenways and she is willing to assist 
Lakewood in master-planning the nature trails and park.  The Metro Greenway is 
designated to cross this property making it very important that we consider its location in 
our design.  The city has not spent any money improving this property yet.  I have asked 
for several bids to bush hog about 25 acres.  I have also accumulated several maps and 
digital data to use to master plan the park after the property is purchased.   We will try to 
use as many professional volunteers as possible. 
 
 








 
 
 
 
 


MINUTES BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 
CITY OF LAKEWOOD JUNE 3, 2010 


 
 
Meeting called to order at 6:30 p.m. by Mayor Aaron Prince. 
 
Opening prayer and pledge of allegiance to flag led by Commissioner James Allen. 
 
Roll call included Mayor Aaron Prince, Vice Mayor April Consulo, Commissioners 
James Allen and Cathy McKellar all present. Also present were City Manager Bobby 
Franklin, City Attorney Louis Oliver and City Recorder Alicia Prince.  Commissioner 
John McClung arrived at 6:36 p.m. 
 
Minutes of the May 6th meeting were approved as written on motion made by 
Commissioner James Allen, second by Cathy McKellar and all voted aye. 
 
Mayor Prince made a motion to suspend Robert’s Rules of Order. Commissioner Cathy 
McKellar second the motion and all members voted aye. 
 
City Manager Franklin explained that he had meeting with FEMA the last month and that 
Davidson County/Metro Nashville made a hazardous mitigation plan for the entire county 
in 1995 and amended it in 2010. FEMA representatives say that Lakewood needs their 
own plan and can adopt Metro’s plan by resolution. He also explained that there is 
hazardous mitigation money available to Lakewood, not only to repair damage done to 
streets and culverts but to help repair related problems that the City has had, to mitigate 
future flood damage but we need the hazardous mitigation plan in place in order to apply 
for the grant money.  
 
He also explained that he made two grant proposals to FEMA, one for $450,000 to repair 
the drainage problems to the Stone Hedge and Donoho areas and another for $125,000.00 
to purchase 63 acres off Ray Ave. He stated that he had placed a contract on the property 
for  $125,000 and is all contingent upon the Board of Commissioners approval.  He also 
stated that FEMA could pay up to 75% of these amounts if the money granted. 
 
City Manager Franklin added that he had spoken to a FEMA representative regarding the 
property on Ray Ave that is for sale and stated that the FEMA representative was very 
optimistic about Lakewood being awarded the grant funds towards the purchase of the 
property for a nature preserve or park. He also stated that if FEMA gave us 75% of the 
cost in grant money, that no structures could be built on the property. 
 







After much discussion, Mayor Prince made a motion by pass Ordinance #398, an 
ordinance approving the contract between Branch Bank and Trust and the City of 
Lakewood for the sale of 62.21 acres appropriating funds to the fiscal year 2010-2011 
Budget in the amount of $125,000.00 on first reading.  Commissioner McKellar second 
the motion. All members voted aye with the exception of Commissioner McClung who 
vote no. Motion passed 4 to 1. 
 
City Manager Franklin continued with his report. He touched on the subject of the City 
posting signs to rezone property. He explained that he interpreted the ordinance standards 
to mean that if a citizen came to the Commission with a request to rezone, then the signs 
and notices would be required but if the City rezoned it could be costly to post signs 
depending on the number of properties affected. He stated that he had posted signs for the 
ballpark rezoning due to the fact that Board stated at the last meeting that they wanted 
signs posted but as an ongoing process, it was necessary for the Board to amend the 
ordinance if they wanted to change this procedure. 
 
He also advised that the bulk drop off would be available until Monday the 7th and that 
our last flood bulk pickup will be Wednesday June 16th by Allied Waste. He added that 
the disaster plan, Resolution #106 that he had available was lengthy but that he had read 
it and he believed it to be acceptable but that it was available for them to read if they 
desired to. 
 
Chief Smith gave his report and stats. He advised that he had faxed the necessary 
paperwork to Motorola and that the CAD system should be in the patrol cars by the 
middle of June.  He also stated that Metro would be providing the Lakewood officers 
with specialized training at no cost such as riot training and will be providing each officer 
with any equipment they can. 
 
Next were citizen comments. 
 


1. Valerie Blackburn stated to City Manager Franklin that the signage 
problem was because R.C. had put a bed and breakfast out there, which 
wound up in a lawsuit and with the signs we could let the neighbors know 
what was coming. She also stated that in reviewing the budget, she found 
that the insurance cost paid by the City for the employees was not listed, 
the police departments budget is not broken down as to what each officer 
is paid and benefits paid by the City. She has several prior budgets and did 
not see anything in the current budget for the police department as a whole 
and the Street Aid Fund does not reflect the balance nor added 
contributions by FEMA. She also stated that she was not aware that the 
State fine to the water department had been negotiated from $7600.00 
down to $4400.00 and did not find out until July.  


 
The public hearing for Ordinance #395, an ordinance rezoning property being Parcel #63, 
Tax Map 53-16 known as the Lakewood Ball Park containing approximately 4.24 acres 
from “Residential to Active Park”, was opened at 7:48 p.m. 







 
1. The same resident who spoke at the last public hearing stated that she only 


saw one sign at the other entrance of the park, that the people who live on 
Prentiss were still not aware of the zoning change request and the people 
who live at the end of the street, as of 3 days ago, were not aware of it and 
does not know why they are keeping it a secret but something is going on. 
She stated that she does not know whether to be for it or against it. 


 
The Mayor explained that there were signs placed on each side of the ballpark and that 
this zoning change will not change anything. He stated that they are changing it from 
residential to active park because it its already a park and that this will keep any future 
houses from being built, which would increase the traffic, if this property should ever sell 
but that Prentiss cannot be closed off. 
 
With no further comments, the public hearing was closed at 7:54 p.m. 
 
Commissioner McKellar made a motion to pass Ordinance #395, an ordinance rezoning 
property being Parcel #63, Tax Map 53-16 known as the Lakewood Ballpark containing 
approximately 4.24 acres, from “Residential to Active Park” on final reading. Vice 
Mayor Consulo second the motion and all members voted aye. 
 
Vice Mayor Consulo left the meeting at 8:00 p.m. 
 
Next was Ordinance #396, 2010-2011 Budget. After some discussion and mention of the 
Budget Workshop scheduled for June 10th, Commissioner McClung made a motion to 
accept Ordinance #396, 2010-2011 Budget on first reading.  Commissioner McKellar 
second the motion and all four remaining members voted aye. 
 
Ordinance #397, Updated Cross Connection Plan was next. The Cross Connection Plan 
was updated with required changes from the State or Tennessee.  Commissioner 
McKellar made a motion to adopt Ordinance #397, the Updated Cross Connection Plan 
on first reading. Commissioner Allen second the motion and four members voted aye. 
 
Next was Resolution #106, Hazardous Mitigation Plan. City Manager Franklin advised 
the Commission that adopting this plan would not adopt the Metro Storm Water fees.  
Commissioner McKellar made a motion to adopt Resolution #106; with a second from 
Commissioner McClung Resolution #106 was adopted with 4-0 vote. 
 
Last order of  “New Business” was Resolution #107, Continue 2009-2010 Budget. 
Commissioner McClung made a motion to accept Resolution #107, Continue Budget 
2009-2010, Commissioner Allen second the motion and all present members voted aye. 
 
Commissioner Allen spoke to the Board concerning a company willing to install fifty 
(50) radio read water meters for the City to demonstrate. 
 







Mayor Prince brought up the strip center and stated that they had not done what they 
promised.  After some discussion, Commissioner Allen made a motion to allow City 
Manager Franklin to take all action necessary to bring them into compliance as soon as 
possible to include bringing a complaint in Chancery Court to enforce compliance. 
Commissioner McKellar second the motion and all four members voted aye. 
 
Mayor Prince also mentioned the Molly Maids sign that they have placed was not part of 
the plan. 
 
With no business, Commissioner Allen made a motion to adjourn at 8:30 p.m.  
Commissioner McClung second the motion and all members voted aye to adjourn. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________   _________________________________  
City Recorder          Mayor 
   








ORDINANCE 397 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING AN UPDATED CROSS CONNECTION PLAN 
FOR THE CITY OF LAKEWOOD 
 
WHEREAS, the Tennessee Department of Environment requires that all public water 
suppliers have an ongoing Cross Connection Control Program in place, and; 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Lakewood established a Cross Connection Control Program 
January 3, 2008 with Ordinance 355, and; 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Lakewood now needs to update its Cross Connection Control 
Program pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated Section 68-221-701 thru 720, and; 
 
WHEREAS, this updated plan has been approved by The Tennessee Department of 
Environment and Conservation.  
 
Be it ordained by the City of Lakewood as follows: 
 
SECTION 1. The Cross Connection Plan adopted in Ordinance 355 is repealed. 
 
SECTION 2. The attached 2010 Cross Connection Plan is hereby adopted. 
 
SECTION 3. This ordinance shall take effect at the earliest date allowed by law. 
 
 
PASSED: 
 
 
First Reading: June 3, 2010 
 
 
Second Reading:  
 
 
_______________ 
    City Recorder 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________ 
    City Attorney 

























































































































































































